
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

DHHL 2019 RENEWABLE ENERGY PROJECTS SOLICITATION 

January 7, 2019 

 

 

A site tour of the two Kalaeloa parcels was conducted on Thursday, January 3, 2019 from 

approximately 9:50 am to 11:00 am. A copy of the handouts provided to the participants and 

photos taken during the tour are included as Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 

The following are responses to questions DHHL received by the deadline of 2:00 pm (HST), 

Friday, January 4, 2019: 

 

1. Is the site visit mandatory to bid? If we are unable to attend the site visit, can we still 

submit an application? 

 

The site visit was not mandatory. Applicants can apply even if they did not participate in 

the site visit.   

 

2. What happened to the Lots 117 and 118 that were available for the first HECO RFP by 

successful shortlisted companies, who were not successful on the first RFP? Are they 

still under option or ROE [Right-of-Entry] by those shortlisted companies so that they 

might bid those sites into the second HECO RFP? Or have they been withheld from this 

RFP for another reason? 

 

Lots 117 and 118 are not under an option, ROE, or any other agreement.  The 

solicitation process concerning those lots was terminated.   Lots 117 and 118 are not 

part of this solicitation, and DHHL is reevaluating the appropriate uses of those lots, as 

a result of new commercial and residential developments planned nearby. 
  

3. Why were all the proposals rejected from your March [2018] Solicitation for Renewable 

Energy? 

 

Not all proposals were rejected; DHHL selected some applications, who then 

proceeded under a separate HECO RFP. However, those applicants were not chosen 

under the HECO RFP.  As a result, no applicant completed DHHL’s leasing process 

under DHHL’s March 2018 solicitation. 



4. Why did the solicitation not include the Kalaoa/Ooma, Hawaii Island property? 

 

DHHL’s Hawaii Island property at Kalaoa/Ooma was not prioritized for inclusion 

in this solicitation.  However, DHHL may offer that and other Hawaii Island 

properties in future solicitations, depending on DHHL’s future plans. 

 

5. Based on the historical review and maps provided in the quitclaim deed at the end of 

the DHHL Information Packet, the location and quantity of historic 

buildings/structures located on Parcels 38 and 40 is not clear.  Can you confirm the 

following? 

i. How many buildings/structures are on each parcel (Parcels 38 and 40)? 

ii. What are the building/structure identification numbers for the historical 

structures on Parcels 38 and 40? 

iii. What are the build dates of those buildings/structures? 

iv. Is a detailed clear map of Parcel 38 identifying where the existing revetments 

are located available? The map provided in the quitclaim deeds is zoomed 

out so 

parcel specific information is difficult to surmise.  
 
The list of improvements included in Exhibit “B” is information DHHL received 

when it acquired the parcels from the US Navy in 2003 and 2008.  Since acquiring 

the parcels, DHHL has not independently surveyed or evaluated the conditions or 

improvements on the parcels.  DHHL expects applicants to make their own 

independent investigation of conditions and improvements as part of their diligence.   
 

6. Please provide clarification on what information DHHL is seeking in response 

to: “Description of the landscape and acreage requirements, including public and 

private lands” on Page 3 of the Information Packet. 

 

DHHL needs to know how many acres an applicant may need to complete its 

proposed project.  If an applicant’s proposed project would not require an entire 

parcel, the applicant should identify the specific portions of the parcel that would be 

needed for its project.  Lastly, an applicant should also specify if it needs any non-

DHHL lands to successfully operate its proposed project.   

 

7. Please confirm if there is a maximum number of developers that will be awarded 

ROEs for a specific parcel. 

 

Only one applicant will be selected for a specific project type on a specific parcel 

for an ROE. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8. Please clarify when negotiation of the ROE agreement terms and the General Lease 

terms are tentatively scheduled for. It’s unclear to our team if the timeline for lease 

negotiation provided in Appendix A of the Information Packet only refers to 

negotiation of the ROE agreement. 

 

DHHL intends to negotiate an ROE and General Lease at the same time.  

Negotiations of both agreements will happen in phases.  Both agreements must 

consider and are subject to consultation and input from DHHL’s beneficiary 

consultation process and from the Hawaiian Homes Commission.  
 

9. Please confirm whether applicants should assume a specific term for the General 

Lease.  

 

Applicants should specify the years desired for the general lease, including any 

extensions. 

 

10. Throughout the Information Packet, DHHL refers to the selected or best 

qualified/ranked “applicant”.  I understand that DHHL may select and negotiate 

lease terms with multiple applicants and provide them with a non-exclusive ROE 

permit for the same parcel.  Please confirm if DHHL will issue multiple ROE 

agreements to different developers to conduct due diligence activities for the same 

parcels regardless of the renewable energy technology proposed provided there is 

more than one qualified applicant (e.g., it is possible that Developer A and 

Developer B may both receive a ROE agreement to explore the feasibility of a solar 

project on Parcel 38 in Kalaeloa). 

 

See response to Question 7.  DHHL may issue more than one ROE per parcel.  However, 

only one applicant for each type of renewable energy technology will be selected.  For 

example, for one parcel, DHHL may issue an ROE to one applicant proposing to develop 

a solar project and another proposing to develop a biomass or wind project in another 

area of the same parcel.  However, DHHL will not issue two ROEs to two developers 

both proposing to develop a solar project on the same parcel. 
 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 

Photos taken during the site tour January 3, 2019.  Numbers for each photo correspond to the 
direction of the views on the accompanying aerial map 

East Kalaeloa Parcel 38 

 #1 A view of a large revetment on the site. 

 #2 A view of a smaller revetment hidden among thick brush. 



 #3 A view looking West from the middle of the parcel. 

 #4 A view looking Southwest from the main access point on Coral Sea Rd. 



 #5  A view from roadway on non-DHHL land looking West towards Coral Sea Rd. 

 #6 a view looking Northeast into Parcel 38 from the beginning of San Juacinto St  
 (DHHL access to the parcel via “Easement 6771”); land to the right of roadway is not 
 owned by DHHL.  



East Kalaeloa Parcel 40 

 #7 A view towards the North along front of Parcel 40. Coral Sea Rd is to the left. 

 #8  A view of the interior of parcel from the front fence gate. 



           #9  A view from the front of the parcel looking towards the Southeast.  

 
 
 

           #10 A view of the front side of a bunker several hundred feet from the front fence  
           gate.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

   



  #11 An interior view of the bunker in #10 above. 

 
 
 

 
                       #12  A view towards the Southwest from the interior of the parcel; the fence in the 
  background is still within the parcel.  The trees further in the back are still within  
  the parcel. 

 
 
 

 
 
 



  #13 A view from the interior of the parcel looking towards the East. 

 
 
 

                      #14  A view looking North at the rear of the parcel. 

 



East Kalaeloa Parcel 38 
 
 
Numbers shown on these aerial maps correspond to the accompanying photos.  These are 
Google aerial maps and do not reflect the current condition of the parcels. 
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East Kalaeloa Parcel 40 
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KALAELOA SITE TOUR MAP

PARCEL 38

PARCEL 40

Roosevelt Ave
Co

ra
l S

ea
 R

d

Essex Rd

Bismarck Sea Rd

Wastewater Plant

yanoag
Polygonal Line

yanoag
Polygonal Line

yanoag
Typewritten Text
KA MAKANA
ALII SHOPPING
MALL

yanoag
Oval

yanoag
Typewritten Text
 START

yanoag
Typewritten Text
   
  END

yanoag
Oval

yanoag
Polygonal Line

yanoag
Polygonal Line

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#1

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#2

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#3

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#4

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#5

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#6

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#7

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#8

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#9

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#10

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#11

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#12

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#13

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#14

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#15

yanoag
Typewritten Text
#16

yanoag
Line

yanoag
Text Box
  
START at DHHL Headquarters' Parking Lot.
#1   TURN RIGHT, out of the parking lot onto Kinoiki Street and across Kapolei Pkwy to the mall.
#2   Drive through Ka Makana Alii shopping mall, all the way to the rear past 24-HR Fitness to the intersection at Roosevelt Ave.
#3   At the intersection, TURN LEFT at Roosevelt Ave.
#4   Continue driving along Roosevelt Ave 
#5   Continue driving past the bend where the wastewater treatment plant will be on your left.
#6   TURN RIGHT into the entrance driveway (Essex Rd) to Barbers Point Golf Course.
#7  Continue driving through Essex Rd with the golf course on your right.
#8   TURN RIGHT at Bismarck Sea Rd.
#9   Continue to drive through Bismarck Sea Rd past Barbers Point Stables on your left.
#10  Be prepared to stop in the vicinity of the solar farm to your right.  The security gate may need to be opened.  Follow lead car for a short distance where you will then TURN LEFT along the western side of the stables.  You will have passed by examples of large and small revetments on the way to Parcel 38.
#11   Continue following the lead car into a clearing where we will have a STOP to allow closer view of the area and a large revetment. 
#12,13 &14  To proceed to Parcel 40, we will backtrack and TURN LEFT onto Roosevelt Ave.
#15  Continue driving West on Roosevelt Ave and TURN LEFT, past the shopping mall intersection, onto Coral Sea Rd and continuing past the Kalaeloa Airport runways.
END #16  Continue to drive South along Coral Sea Rd towards Parcel 40.  Park perpendicular to the fence for a STOP and further information. 






EXHIBIT “B” 

 

The accompanying pages are excerpts from a report prepared for the Department of the Navy, 

Commander, Pacific Division, Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Pearl Harbor, Hawaii 

entitled “Finding of Suitability to Transfer:  Property to be Transferred to the Department of the 

Interior for Conveyance to the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands, Naval Air Station Barbers 

Point, Oahu, Hawaii” (Earth Tech, Inc. and Tetra Tech EM Inc., 1999). 
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